
 

 
 

 

INFORMATION DIGEST DOCUMENT PACK 
 

Date: 
 

Tuesday, 25 May 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Remote Committee Meetings (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

Information  
Digest 

 

 
 

To:  Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Date: 24 May 2021 

 

 
Remote Committee Meetings 
 

 
Councillor Sybil Ralphs MBE 
Leader 
 
Linden Vernon 
Senior Officer – Governance and Member Support 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 This Information Digest provides councillors with an update on the use of 

remote or virtual meetings by the Council and invites comments from 
councillors on the potential future use of online meetings.  These will then be 
taken in to account in the Council’s formal response to the current 

Government call for evidence via a Cabinet Delegated Decision. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the report be noted. 
 

2.2 That councillors comment on the questions included in the Government’s Call 
for Evidence with regards to local authority remote meetings. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 As a result of restrictions put in place to tackle the Coronavirus pandemic in 
March 2020 it was not possible for council meetings to take place in person.  

In response the Government brought into force regulations that enabled local 
authorities to hold remote meetings. 

 

3.2 The legislation only allowed for remote council meetings to take place up to 7 
May 2021.  The Government has launched a call for evidence on the use of 

virtual meeting arrangements to gather views on the question of whether there 
should be permanent arrangements for remote meetings and, if so, for which 
meetings.  The consultation ends on 17 June and comprises 11 questions 

which are provided at Appendix A of this Information Digest. 
 

3.3 The introduction of remote meetings has generated financial savings of 
£10,804 per annum and led to a reduction in CO2 emissions of 2.12 tonnes.  
Remote committees have also seen substantial numbers of the public viewing 

meetings and an increase in non-committee members attending meetings 
indicating that meetings have become more accessible. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the 

appropriate channels and provided “right first time” 

 Effective use of ICT 

 Meeting the challenges of climate change 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance and Service Commissioning) 

 
Web Links and Background Papers Contact details 

Call for Evidence – Appendix A Linden Vernon 

Senior Officer – Governance and Member Support 

Page 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-authority-remote-meetings-call-for-evidence/local-authority-remote-meetings-call-for-evidence


 
 
5. Detail 

 

5.1 As a result of restrictions put in place to tackle the Coronavirus pandemic in 
March 2020 it was not possible for council meetings to take place in person.  
In response to this the Government brought into force regulations that enabled 

local authorities to hold remote meetings (The Local Authorities and Police 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 

Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/392), 
made under section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020). 

 

5.2 These regulations applied to all local authorities in England and Wales, 
including parish and town councils. They specified that a ‘meeting’ of a local 

authority could lawfully take place online, with members ‘in remote 
attendance’ who can hear and be heard by, and if possible see and be seen 
by, other members. 

 
5.3 Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 only permitted regulations to apply to 

council meetings that took place before 7 May 2021, primary legislation would 
be needed to extend this ability. Luke Hall MP, the Minister of State for Local 
Growth and Local Government, wrote to council leaders on 25 March 2021 to 

confirm that the Government had concluded that it was not possible to bring 
forward emergency legislation to extend the original regulation. 

 
5.4 The Government has launched a call for evidence on the use of virtual 

meeting arrangements to gather views on the question of whether there 

should be permanent arrangements for remote meetings and, if so, for which 
meetings.  The consultation ends on 17 June and comprises 11 questions 

which are provided at Appendix A of this Information Digest. 
 
5.6 If any changes to legislation are made as a result of this call for evidence, they 

would apply to England only. The Welsh Government passed the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 which came into force on 1 May 

and makes express provision for Welsh local authorities to meet remotely. 
Scottish local authorities had express provision to meet remotely prior to the 
pandemic. 

 
Project Group 

 

5.7 The Council created a Project Group to evaluate the various video conference 
systems that could be used to operate remote meetings.  After considering a 

range of options “Teams” was selected as the software was available to the 
Council as part of its Microsoft 365 suite of applications and was fully 

integrated with other systems such as Outlook.   
 
5.8 The project team also developed and delivered documentation and training 

sessions for councillors on the use of Teams including the organisation of test 
meetings. 

 

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-authority-remote-meetings-call-for-evidence/local-authority-remote-meetings-call-for-evidence


5.9 An audit was carried out to test the speed of officer and councillors’ internet 
access.  Although the Council represents a significant rural area there have 

been very limited problems linked to internet connectivity. 
 

5.10 Since starting to use Teams the software has been used to conduct a range 
of formal and informal meetings including site visits for the Planning 
Applications Committee.  This has included the use of photographs and 

videos to replace the Committee visit to application locations. 
 
Financial and Carbon Savings 
 

5.11 Whilst the Council has been conducting meetings remotely financial savings 

have been realised.  Based on a typical year these breakdown as follows: 
 

Expenses paid to councillors (e.g. mileage) £7,438 

Coach hire and refreshments £3,366 

Total estimated annual savings £10,804 

    

5.12 Taking into account the typical mileage claimed by councillors each year 
(8,466 miles) this equates to an annual reduction of 2.12 tonnes of CO2.  It 

should be noted that this will be an under-estimate as a number of councillors 
choose not to claim travel expenses. 

 
Meeting Attendance 
 

5.13 Following the introduction of remote meetings for all committees (Full Council, 
Council Assembly and Planning Applications Committee have been routinely 
webcast prior to the pandemic) there have been a total of 4,217 views of 

SMDC committee meetings via the Council’s webcast service with an average 
of 80 views per meeting.  Meetings of Planning Applications Committee 

attracted the most views on average (138) followed by Full Council/Council 
Assembly (110 on average).  The average views for all committees is 
provided in the table below. 

 

Meeting 
Average no. 
of views per 

meeting 

Planning Applications Committee 138 

Full Council/Council Assembly 110 

Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 106 

Cabinet 76 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 68 

Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 57 

Licensing Sub-Committee 47 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel 38 

Standards Committee  32 

Moorlands Partnership Board 30 

Audit and Accounts Committee 30 

Licensing & Regulatory Committee 17 

Page 6



 
5.14 Whilst meetings have been conducted remotely there has also been an 

increase in the number of non-committee members attending meetings 
indicating that remote meetings are also more accessible for councillors. 

 
High Court Claim 
 

5.15 A claim seeking a declaratory judgment from the High Court was lodged on 17 
March by ADSO (Association of Democratic Services Officers), LLG (Lawyers 

in Local Government) and Hertfordshire County Council. The claimants 
sought a declaration from the court that uses of the word ‘meeting’ in local 
government legislation could be read as referring to remote meetings as well 

as in-person meetings.  The judgement issued by the High Court was as 
follows: 

 
 “…. the Secretary of State was correct in November 2016 and July 2019 to 
say that primary legislation would be required to allow local authority 

“meetings” under the 1972 Act to take place remotely. In our view, once the 
Flexibility Regulations cease to apply, such meetings must take place at a 

single, specified geographical location; attending a meeting at such a location 
means physically going to it; and being “present” at such a meeting involves 
physical presence at that location.  We recognise that there are powerful 

arguments in favour of permitting remote meetings. But, as the consultation 
documents show, there are also arguments against doing so. The decision 

whether to permit some or all local authority meetings to be conducted 
remotely, and if so, how, and subject to what safeguards, involves difficult 
policy choices on which there is likely to be a range of competing views. 

These choices have been made legislatively for Scotland by the Scottish 
Parliament and for Wales by the Senedd. In England, they are for Parliament, 

not the courts”. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

 

Call for Evidence Questions 

 

Q1. Generally speaking, how well do you feel the current remote meetings 
arrangements work? 
 

 Very Well  

 Well  

 Neither well nor poorly  

 Poorly  

 Very Poorly  

 Unsure  

 
Q2. Generally speaking, do you think local authorities in England should have the 
express ability to hold at least some meetings remotely on a permanent basis?  

 
Q3. What do you think are some of the benefits of the remote meetings 

arrangements? Please select all that apply. 
 

 More accessible for local authority members  

 Reduction in travel time for councillors  

 Meetings more easily accessed by local residents  

 Greater transparency for local authority meetings  

 Documents (e.g. minutes, agendas, supporting papers) are more accessible to 

local residents and others online  

 Easier to chair meetings in an orderly fashion  

 A virtual format promotes greater equality in speaking time during meetings  

 I do not think there are any benefits to remote meetings  

 Other (please specify) 
 

Q4. (For local authorities only) Have you seen a reduction in costs since 
implementing remote meetings in your authority? 
 

 Yes  

 No  

 Unsure 
 

Q5. What do you think are some of the disadvantages of the remote meetings 
arrangements, and do you have any suggestions for how they could be 
mitigated/overcome? Please select all that apply. 

 

 It is harder for members to talk to one another informally  

Page 8



 Meetings are less accessible for local authority members or local residents who 
have a poor-quality internet connection  

 Meetings are less accessible for local authority members or local residents who 
are unfamiliar with video conferencing/technology  

 There is less opportunity for local residents to speak or ask questions 

 Some find it more difficult to read documents online than in a physical format  

 Debate is restricted by the remote format  

 It is more difficult to provide effective opposition or scrutiny in a remote format  

 It is more difficult to chair meetings in an orderly fashion  

 Virtual meetings can be more easily dominated by individual speakers  

 It might enable democratically elected members to live and perform their duties 
outside their local area on a permanent basis, therefore detaching them from the 
communities they serve  

 It may create too substantial a division between the way national democracy (e.g. 
in the House of Commons) and local democracy is conducted  

 I do not think there are any disadvantages to remote meetings  

 Other (please specify)  

 
Q6. What do you think are some of the main advantages of holding face-to-face 

meetings, as opposed to remote meetings? 
 
Q7. If permanent arrangements were to be made for local authorities in England, for 

which meetings do you think they should have the option to hold remote meetings? 
 

 For all meetings  

 For most meetings with a few exceptions (please specify)  

 Only for some meetings (please specify)  

 I think local should be able to decide for themselves which meetings they should 
have the option to meet remotely  

 I do not think local authorities should have the option to hold remote meetings for 
any meetings  

 Unsure 
 

Q8. If permanent arrangements were to be made for local authorities in England, in 
which circumstances do you think local authorities should have the option to hold 
remote meetings? 

 

 In any circumstances  

 Only in extenuating circumstances where a meeting cannot be held face-to-face 
or some members would be unable to attend (e.g. severe weather events, 

coronavirus restrictions)  

 I think local authorities should be able to decide for themselves which 
circumstances they should have the option to meet remotely  

 I do not think local authorities should have the option to hold remote meetings 
under any circumstances  

 Other (please specify)  

 Unsure 

 

Page 9



Q9. Would you have any concerns if local authorities in England were given the 
power to decide for themselves which meetings, and in what circumstances, they 

have the option to hold remote meetings? 
 

 Yes  

 No  

 Unsure 
 
Q10. If yes, do you have any suggestions for how your concerns could be 

mitigated/overcome? 
 

Q11. In your view, would making express provision for English local authorities to 
meet remotely particularly benefit or disadvantage any individuals with protected 
characteristics e.g. those with disabilities or caring responsibilities? 

 

 Yes  

 No  

 Unsure 

 
 

Page 10


	Agenda
	1 Remote Committee Meetings

